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To the Board of Directors of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments (RVCOG),
and the Citizens of Jackson and Josephine Counties:

Oregon state law requires that all local governments publish a complete set of
financial statements within six months of the close of each fiscal year. These financial
statements need to be presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants who are also certified by
the State of Oregon as municipal auditors. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby
issue RVCOG’s annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2025 (the audited fiscal year).

This report consists of management’s representations concerning RVCOG’s finances.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable
basis for making these representations, RVCOG’s management has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of RVCOG’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits,
RVCOG’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be
free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

RVCOG’s financial statements have been audited by Isler Medford, LLC, a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that RVCOG’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2025, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable
basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that RVCOG’s financial statements for the
audited fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.



The independent audit of RVCOG’s financial statements was part of a broader, federally mandated
“Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in
RVCOG’s Single Audit Report, which is included in this report following the supplemental
information combining statements and schedules.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. RVCOG’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

RVCOQG, established through an intergovernmental agreement among its founding members on
September 30, 1968, is located in the southwestern portion of the state and includes Jackson and
Josephine counties. Membership in RVCOG comprises the two counties, all incorporated
municipalities within the region, two institutions of higher learning, and a number of special
districts.

RVCOG operates under the direction of a Board of Directors composed of one member
representing, and appointed by, the governing body of each member entity. Policy-making and
organizational oversight are vested in the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is responsible,
among other things, for adopting the budget, setting policy, and hiring the Executive Director. The
Executive Director is responsible for carrying out the policies of the Board of Directors, for
overseeing RVCOG’s day-to-day operations, and for appointing the heads of the various
departments.

RVCOG provides a range of diverse services, both to the public and to the member jurisdictions.
The services provided include (but are not limited to): 1) functioning as the designated Area
Agency on Aging for Jackson and Josephine counties, providing services to older adults and adults
with disabilities, including operation of the Meals on Wheels and congregate senior meals program;
2) functioning as the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPQ) for the Middle Rogue
and Rogue Valley MPQs; 3) providing both transportation planning and land-use planning services
to member jurisdictions; 4) assisting member entities with grants management, financial services,
human resources services, information technology services, project management, project
development, drone services, and acquiring project funding; and 5) providing riparian restoration
and water-related services to member jurisdictions, including water quality monitoring and analysis;
storm-water, wetland, and watershed planning; and environmental education.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for RVCOG’s financial planning and control. All
RVCOG departments are required to submit a proposed budget to the Executive Director during the
spring of ecach year. All departmental budgets included in the special revenue fund must be
submitted with the funding for each project identified. The level of funding available to the general



fund is determined based on the federally approved indirect rate being applied to applicable costs in
the special revenue fund budget.

In the spring of each year the Executive Director submits a proposed budget to the Budget
Committee. This committee comprises three members of the Board of Directors and an equal
number of interested citizens appointed by the Board. The Budget Committee reviews the budget as
submitted and holds a public meeting for the purpose of discussing the budget with department
directors and to receive citizen comments. After making any changes to the budget that the
members deem necessary, the Budget Committee makes a recommendation of approval to the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors then adopts the budget and sets the appropriations by
resolution prior to July 1. The appropriated budget is prepared at the fund/department level.

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided as part of the basic financial statements for the
governmental funds, with the general fund being presented on page 30, the special revenue fund on
page 31, and the Food & Friends Endowment fund on page 32.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which RVCOG
operates. To best put RVCOG’s operating environment into perspective, the reader should
appreciate the fact that RVCOG’s existence is dependent on others — mostly units of general
government — to finance its activities. Although variable from year to year, more than 90 percent of
the resources available to RVCOG are derived from grants and contracts with either federal, state,
or local governmental entities. While the overall RVCOG budget enjoys significant stability, the
distribution of revenue between departments and between projects within departments can vary
depending on federal, state, and local changes in funding availability and programmatic priorities.

Local economy. For RVCOG, “local” includes both Jackson and Josephine counties. Until
relatively recently in the region’s history, the economics of both counties was dominated by, and
dependent on, the timber industry, with the service industry, agriculture, manufacturing, and
tourism coming in far behind. With the significant reductions in the timber industry during the latter
part of the 20" Century, a major shift occurred in the economics of the two-county region that had
an especially significant impact on the eaming potential of workers in the middle and lower
economic classes. While nothing has managed to completely replace the timber industry as a broad
employer with above average wages, government has continued to be a strong employer, while
health care and tourism have grown into an increasingly significant part of the economy.

During the last several decades population growth has increased the demand for a wide variety of
services, although the rate has fluctuated with changes in the national and regional economy.
Population estimates for July 2024 show a slight decrease in the region’s population, from 312,555
to 309,607. Of note, however, is the increasing trend of residents sixty-five or older, reaching
24.5% for Jackson County and 28% for Josephine County, far outpacing the state (19.9%) and
federal (18.0%) levels.

Unfortunately, the region remains one of the more depressed in Oregon and the nation. In Jackson
County in 2024 the median household income ($71,443) was approximately 11% lower than the



state ($80,426) and 9% lower than national ($78,338) levels, while Josephine County’s median
household income ($59,097) ranks approximately 26.5% and 25% below both the state and national
levels. In addition, based on the latest estimates, 12.6% of Jackson County families and 15.1% of
Josephine County families live below the poverty level. The state and national poverty levels are
11.8% and 10.6% respectively.

Long-term financial planning. As stated earlier, RVCOG depends almost wholly on grants and
contracts for its existence. While this can make long-range planning uncertain, for practical
purposes RVCOG makes the assumption that there will be sufficient funding through grants and
contracts to maintain the operations of the organization at or near its current level. The viability of
this practice is supported by over five decades of continued operation — even though the
organization has seen major shifts in programs during that time period, RVCOG has remained a
viable organization. Over the long term, it is RVCOG’s primary financial goal to maintain a
positive fund balance in the general and special revenue funds.

Financial policies. RVCOG is primarily funded through grants and contracts from other
governments and some non-governmental entities, and these funds are normally dedicated to very
specific activities and products. Because of this, RVCOG does not have a ready source of
discretionary funding, and because of this lack of discretionary funding, RVCOG has had a long-
standing policy that grants and contracts must be fully funded, with no dependence on other
RVCOG resources. In addition, RVCOG, as a council of governments, is typically required to
operate on a reimbursement basis for actual costs while adhering to often inflexible predetermined
project budgets, so oceasionally the actual costs of completing a specific project total more than the
resources provided from the grant or contract. Such project deficits, when they occur, can result in a
negative change in fund balance for the affected year.

Cash management policies and practices. Cash management for RVCOG does not include, for
the most part, an investment strategy, as RVCOG rarely has any available cash to invest. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, RVCOG was able to establish an endowment to benefit the Food &
Friends Senior Meals program based on a donation from a program participant, but that endowment
is being professionally managed by a private company. As mentioned above, the majority of the
grants and contracts that RVCOG enters into are on an expense reimbursement basis, which
requires that cash management is predominantly an exercise in balancing the reimbursements
received with the need to meet current obligations.

Risk management. RVCOG maintains adequate commercial insurance policies to meet all
potential losses.

Pension and other post-employment benefits. The Rogue Valley Council of Governments
provides a 401(a) defined contribution pension plan for its regular employees. It also offers a 457
deferred compensation plan funded solely with individual employee contributions.

The only post-employment benefit provided to retirees by the Rogue Valley Council of
Governments is the opportunity to remain enrolled in the health and dental insurance programs
through a COBRA arrangement wherein the retiree pays their own premiums.
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LLC
Certified Public Accountants
And Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Rogue Valley Council of Governments, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Rogue Valley Council of Governments, as of June 30, 2025, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Rogue Valley
Council of Governments and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

“Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Rogue Valley
Council of Governments’ ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
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from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ ability
to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures by department, the capital asset schedules, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
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information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures by department, the capital asset schedules,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information
and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 19, 2025, on our consideration of Rogue Valley Council of Governments' internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Rogue Valley
Council of Governments’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

in accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have
issued our report dated December 19, 2025, on our consideration of compliance with certain
provisions of laws and regulations, including the provision of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified
in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of compliance and the results of that testing ad not to provide an opinion on compliance.

wmmta/xg\d O
Isler Medford, LLC

Medford, Oregon
December 19, 2025

By: (‘M&\\W\M 0ea ReMmA
c@y@m. Rydek, SPA, CGMA N

839 ALDER CREEF

A

DRIVE ® MEDFORD, OREGON 97504 ® PHONE (541) 779-7641 ® FAX (541) 773-8001

Member of Isler Association of Accounting Firms
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments, we offer readers of RVCOG’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Rogue
Valley Council of Governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 2 through 6 of this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments exceeded its liabilities at the close of
the most recent fiscal year by $4,700,951 (Net Position). Of this amount, $2,072,719
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet RVCOG’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

RVCOG’s total net position increased by $405,037. This increase is the result of total revenues
in excess of expenditures across all funds in the organization.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, RVCOG’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $1,686,807, a net increase of $379,344 from the prior year. Over half of
this increase resulted from General Fund actual Materials and Services expenditures that were
less than budgeted.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $909,975
or 243% of total General Fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to RVCOG’s basic financial
statements. RVCOG’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of RVCOG’s finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of RVCOG’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of any shifts or trends in RVCOG’s financial
performance.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
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Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Rogue Valley
Council of Governments that are principally supported by intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). As discussed
previously, RVCOG’s governmental activities include general government, health and welfare,
natural resources and conservation, and planning.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25 and 26 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. RVCOG,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of RVCOG’s funds can be divided into
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, and changes in fund equity provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

RVCOG maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, and
changes in fund equity for the General, the Special Revenue, and the Food & Friends
Endowment Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.

RVCOG adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for each of the governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with
this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 32 of this
report.



15

Proprietary funds. RVCOG maintains one type of proprietary fund. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the organization’s
various functions. RVCOG uses internal service funds to account for its building operations,
leave liability, vehicles, information systems, and other management functions that cannot be
allocated to other functions. Because all of these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.

All of the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is
provided in the form of combining statements found on pages 60 through 62 of this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 through 35 of this
report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 36 through 54 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of RVCOG, assets exceed liabilities by $4,700,951 at the close of
the most recent fiscal year. The majority of RVCOG’s net position, equivalent to $2,628,232,
reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment).
RVCOG uses these assets to provide services to member jurisdictions; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. The unrestricted portion, equivalent to $2,072,719, includes
the investment in RVCOG’s Food & Friends Endowment of $544,420, which is committed for
use by the senior meals program.

At the end of the current fiscal year, RVCOG is able to report a positive balance in net position
for the government as a whole. All funds, governmental, special revenue, endowment, and
internal service, report positive balances in both the investment in capital assets and unrestricted
categories of net position.
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Net Position

Governmental activities
2025 2024 Change

Current and other assets $ 4,746,111 $ 3,876,624 $ 869,487
Capital assets 2,628,232 2,722,144 (93,912)

Total assets $ 7,374,343 § 6,598,768 $ 775,575
Long-term liabilities outstanding $ 1,000,280 $ 881,479 §$ 118,801
Other liabilities 1,673,112 1,277,521 395,591

Total Labilities $ 2,673,392 § 2,159,000 $ 514,392

Net position:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 2,628,232 § 2,722,144 § (93,912)
Restricted - - -
Unrestricted 2,072,719 1,573,770 498,949
Total net position $ 4,700,951 $ 4295914 $ 405,037

RVCOG’s Net Position increased by $405,037 during the current fiscal year. RVCOG’s net
position in the governmental funds and internal service funds are consolidated in the
government-wide statement of net position.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities accounted for the entire increase in RVCOG’s
net position since all activities are governmental. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

1. The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $135,830 as a result of revenues
exceeding expenditures. The General Fund is funded by two primary sources, member
dues and indirect charges, which are charged to the programs in the Special Revenue
Fund. There are a small number of programs which are able to collect revenues from
local sources in excess of the amounts expended on those projects. Member dues were
exactly as anticipated. The indirect charges are based on an annual rate that is determined
during the budget process using the General Fund budgeted expenditures, less member
dues and other miscellaneous revenues, divided by the applicable Special Revenue Fund
expenditures. When the actual expenses of the Special Revenue Fund fall below the level
that was anticipated the result to the General Fund is a decrease in indirect revenues.
Indirect revenues for the current fiscal year exceeded General Fund expenditures.

2. The net position of the Special Revenue Fund increased by $162,797 as a result of total
net revenues in the various programs, when taken as a whole, being greater than the total
overall expenditures. The majority of both grants and contracts only reimburse actual
expenditures up to a total amount; however, a small number of programs are able to
collect revenues in excess of the amounts expended on those projects, thus while in some
projects expenditures may exceed the available resources, other projects can generate



17

extra revenue which can be used as an offset. This year the projects that had available
resources in excess of expenditures did exceed those with excess expenditures.

3. The net position of the Food and Friends Endowment Fund increased by $80,717. This
represents gains on investments less investment fees.

4. The net position of the internal service funds increased by $25,693. As with the
indirect charges, the charges for the internal service funds are based on an annual rate that
is determined during the budget process using expenditures budgeted in the General and
Special Revenue Funds. When the actual expenses of these funds exceed the level that
was anticipated, the result is a shortfall in revenues received by the internal service funds.
While that was the case this fiscal year in the Building Operations and Maintenance
Funds, the Internal Service, Vehicle Operations and Maintenance, Computer Rental
Fund, and Leave Liability Funds had revenues in excess of expenses.

During this fiscal year compensated absences expense was $614,570.



Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Changes in Net Position

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
General revenues:
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenses:
General government

Health and welfare
Natural resources and conservation
Planning
Interest on long-term debt
Total expenses

Change in net position
Net position 7/1
Net position 6/30

Governmental activities
2025 2024 Change
35,778 $ 34457 $ 1,321
7,783,274 7,382,630 400,644
191,538 37,122 154,416
8,010,590 $ 7,454,209 $ 556,381
1,920,638 $ 1,720,802 $ 199,836
4,387,883 4,226,297 161,586
503,100 408,075 95,025
793,932 644,271 149,661
7,605,553 $§ 6,999,445 $ 606,108
405,037 $ 454,764 $ (49,727)
4,295914 3,841,150 454,764
4,700951 $§ 4295914 $ 405,037
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Revenues and Expenses — Governmental Activities
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Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Other revenues
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$7,783,274
97.16%

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, RVCOG uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of RVCOG’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing RVCOG’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Rogue Valley Council of Governments’
governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1,686,807, an increase of
$379,344 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount $544,420 is committed to the Food
& Friends Endowment Fund, while the unassigned fund balance of $1,142,387 is available for
spending at the government’s discretion.

The General Fund is the administrative operating fund of the Rogue Valley Council of
Governments. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund
was $909,975. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.

RVCOG’s General Fund equity increased by $135,830 during the current fiscal year. Key factors
in this increase are as follows:
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e Indirect charges are the major source of revenue for the General Fund, with the rate
being based on the budgeted expenditures of the Special Revenue Fund projects.
During the current fiscal year, General Fund Materials and Services expenditures
were significantly less than budgeted resulting in excess revenue.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital assets. RVCOG’s investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of

June 30, 2025, amounts to $2,628,232 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery, and equipment.

Rogue Valley Council of Governments' Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental activities
2025 2024 Change
Land $ 556,750 $ 556,750 -
Buildings and Construction In Progress 1,861,360 1,934,295 § (72,935)
Machinery and equipment 210,122 231,099 (20,977)
Total $ 2,628,232 § 2,722,144 § (93,912)

Additional information on RVCOG’s capital assets can be found in note 4.C on page 45 of this
report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, RVCOG had no bonded debt outstanding.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets

RVCOG is less affected by the economy locally than it is statewide, due to the fact that a
majority of the projects undertaken by RVCOG are funded through state grants and contracts.
Nonetheless, RVCOG does depend to a significant degree on the ability of its members to pay
dues, which a poor local economy could impact. While dues are commonly less than 1.0% of
RVCOG’s overall budget ($48,243 in the current year), they are critically important in providing
a small amount of contingency and in funding activities that are not recoverable through indirect
cost allocation or reimbursement (per OMB Uniform Guidance).

At the close of fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, unreserved fund balance in the General Fund
was $909,975. The federally approved indirect rate, which provided 90% of the General Fund
resources for this fiscal year, is set at 14.0% of applicable direct cost of all projects in the Special
Revenue Fund and has remained the same as prior years.
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Rogue Valley Council of
Governments’ finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Rogue Valley Council of Governments,
PO Box 3275, Central Point, OR 97502.
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2025

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,519,939
Investments 544,421
Receivables 1,614,536
Prepaids 67,215
Total Current Assets 4,746,111
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 556,750
Buildings 1,861,360
Machinery and equipment 210,122
Total Capital Assets 2,628,232
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,374,343
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 518,508
Payroll payable 190,758
Other current liabilities 963,846
Total Current Liabilities 1,673,112
Non-current Liabilities
Due within one year 585,625
Due in more than one year 414,655
Total Non-current Liabilities 1,000,280
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 2,673,392
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets (net of related debt) $ 2,628,232
Restricted -
Unrestricted 2,072,719
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 4,700,951

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Assets

Primary
Operating  Government
Charges for Grants and Governmental

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Activities
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 1,920,638 $ 29,708 § 317,129 $ (1,573,801)
Health and welfare 4,387,883 1,262,070 4,295,499 1,169,686
Natural resources and 503,100 619,707 116,607
conservation
Planning 793,932 1,294,939 501,007
Interest on long-term debt -
Total governmental activities $ 7,605,553 $1,291,778 $ 6,527,274 $ 213,499
Total primary government $ 7,605,553 $1,291,778 $ 6,527,274 $§ 213,499
General revenues:
Interest earned 47,956
Other revenues 143,582
Total general revenues $§ 191,538
Change in net position $ 405,037
Net position - beginning 4,295,914
Net position - ending $ 4,700,951

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2025

Food & Total
Special Friends Governmental
General Revenue Endowment Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,189,315 $ 591,257 $ - 9 1,780,572
Investments 544,420 544,420
Receivables 11,607 1,407,006 1,418,613
Prepaids 27,384 14,055 41,439
Total assets $ 1,228306 $ 2,012,318 $§ 544,420 $ 3,785,044
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 21,008 § 413,154 $ - $ 434,162
Payroll payable 190,758 190,758
Due to other governments -
Due to others 102,819 784,873 887,692
Deferred revenues 3,746 581,879 585,625
Total lLiabilities $ 318,331 $ 1,779,906 $ - 8 2,098,237
Fund Balances:
Commited $ - 8 - $ 544420 $ 544,420
Unassigned 909,975 232,412 1,142,387
Total fund balance $ 909,975 $ 232412 $ 544420 $ 1,686,807

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,228,306 $ 2,012,318 $ 544,420

Amounts reported for governmental
activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental
activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds.

Internal service funds are used by

management to charge the costs of

internal services, computer rent, leave

liability and building operating costs to

individual funds. The assets and

liabilities of the internal service funds

are included in governmental activities

in the statement of net assets. 3,014,144

Net assets of governmental activities $ 4,700,951
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Food & Total
Special Friends Governmental
General Revenue Endowment Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 59,741 $§ 6,197,695 $ - § 6,257436
Charges for services 449,486 1,274,518 - 1,724,004
Contributions and donations - 112,819 - 112,819
Other revenues 739 127,857 84,372 212,968
Total revenues $ 509,966 $§ 7,712,889 §$ 84,372 § 8,307,227
EXPENDITURES
Personnel costs $ 228,778 § 2,585,586 $ - $ 22814364
Materials and services 76,385 3,099,328 3,655 3,179,368
Depreciation - - - -
Debt service:
Principal - - - -
Interest - - - -
Internal charges 68,973 1,865,178 - 1,934,151
Total expenditures $ 374,136 § 7,550,092 $ 3,655 § 7,927,883
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 135,830 § 162,797 § 80,717 § 379,344
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ - - 8 - 8 -
Transfers out - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) $ - $ - 3 -5 -
Net change in fund balance $ 135830 § 162,797 $ 80,717 § 379,344
Fund balance - as previously presented 774,318 213,297 463,703 1,451,318
Fund Balance - as restated 774,145 69,615 463,703 1,307,463
Fund balance - ending $ 909975 $§ 232412 § 544420 § 1,686,807

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (see page 26)
are different because:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds (see page 28) $ 379,344

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of internal services,
computer rent, leave liability, and vehicle and building operating costs to individual funds.
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities.

Internal service fund $ 89,295
Computer rental fund 7,180
Leave liability fund 14,718
Vehicle operating & maintenance fund (4,723)
Building operating & maintenance fund (80,777)

Net revenues $ 25,693

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e., purchase, sales, trade-
ins, and donations) is to increase(decrease) net assets. -

Change in net assets of governmental activities (see page 26) $ 405,037

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



30

Rogue Valley Council of Governments
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 48,243 $ 48,243 § 59,741 $ 11,498
Charges for services 462,876 462,876 449,486 (13,390)
Contributions and donations -
Other revenues 19,693 19,693 739 (18,954)
Total revenues $ 530,812 $ 530,812 $ 509,966 $ (20,846)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel costs $ 323812 $ 323812 § 228,768 $ 95,044
Materials and services 59,451 59,451 76,385 (16,934)
Depreciation -
Debt service:
Principal -
Interest -
Internal charges 147,549 147,549 68,983 78,566
Total expenditures $ 530,812 $ 530,812 § 374,136 $ 156,676
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ -3 - 3 135,830 $ 135,830
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ - 3 - 8 -5 -
Transfers out -
Total other financing sources (uses) $ -3 -3 - 3 -
Net change in find balance $ - $ - $ 135,830 $ 135,830
Fund balance - beginning 641,153 641,153 774,145 132,992
Fund balance - ending $ 641,153 $ 641,153 $ 909,975 $ 268,822

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
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Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 8,318,107 $§ 8,363,107 $ 6,197,695 $ (2,165,412)
Charges for services 727,712 727,712 1,274,518 546,806
Contributions and donations 1,172,198 1,172,198 112,819 (1,059,379)
Other revenues 239,221 255,221 127,857 (127,364)
Total revenues $ 10,457,238 $ 10,518,238 § 7,712,889 § (2,805,349)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel costs $ 2,709,216 $ 2,709,216 $ 2,585,586 $ 123,630
Materials and Services 5,789,583 5,850,583 3,099,328 2,751,255
Depreciation -
Debt service:
Principal -
Interest -
Internal charges 1,858,439 1,858,439 1,865,178 (6,739)
Total expenditures $ 10,357,238 $ 10,418,238 § 7,550,092 $ 2,868,146
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $§ 162,797 $ 62,797
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ - 3 - 3 -3 -
Transfers out (100,000) (100,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) $  (100,000) $§ (100,000) $ - 8 -
Net change in fund balance $ - 8 - % 162,797 $ 62,797
Fund balance - as previously presented 34,791 34,791 213,297 178,506
Fund balance - as restated 34,791 34,791 69,615 34,824
Fund balance - ending $ 34,791 $ 34,791 § 232,412 § 97,621

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Food & Friends Endowment Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Contributions and donations
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Personnel costs
Materials and services
Depreciation
Debt service:

Principal

Interest
Internal charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending
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Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ - - -8 -
14,000 14,000 84,372 70,372
$ 14,000 14,000 84,372 § 70,372
$ - - -8 -
3,200 3,200 3,655 (455)
$ 3,200 3,200 3,655 § (455)
$ 10,800 10,800 80,717 § 69,917
$ - - -8 -
S - - - 8 -
$ 10,800 10,800 80,717 § 69,917
463,703 463,703 463,703 -
$ 474,503 474,503 544,420 $ 69,917

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2025

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables)
Prepaid
Due from other funds
Total current assets

Long-term assets:
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total long-term assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Compensated absences-current portion
Due to other funds
Other Current Liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term labilities
Compensated absences-non-current portion
Other Non-Current Liabilities
Total long-term liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets (net of related debt)
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental
Activities - Internal
Service Funds

$ 739,368

195,924
25,777

961,069

40,148
3,233,769
425,125

(1,070,811)

2,628,231

2,628,231

$ 3,589,300

$ 84,347

54,855

76,154

$ 215,356

$ 359,800

$ 359,800

$ 575,156

$ 2,628,231

385,913

$ 3,014,144
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Charges for services
Leave liability accrual charges
Other revenues
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of services
Leave liability costs
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Donations
Sale of Assets
Purchase of assets
Interest expense
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contibutions from government:
Contributed capital assets

Transfers In

Change in net position

Total net position - begnning

Total net position - ending

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Funds

$ 1,185,545

629,288

14,986

$ 1,829,819
$ 1,092,784
614,570

133,347

$ 1,840,701
$ (10,882)
$ 36,575
$ 25,693
$ -
$ 25,693
$ 2988451

$ 3,014,144

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from interfund services provided
Receipts from outside services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITES
Interfund loans (short-term)
Transfers from other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITES
Proceeds (loss) from sale of capital assets
Purchase of capital assets for general purposes
Principle paid on capital debt
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30
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Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Funds
$ 1,796,401

14,985
(657,017)
(1,084,790)
$ 69,579
$ -
$ -
$ -
(6,241)
$ (6,241)
$ 63,338
676,031
$ 739,369

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:

Depreciation

Increase in accounts receivable

Decrease in prepaids

Increase in uncompensated absences

Decrease in deferred revenues

Increase in accounts payable

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 25,693
$ 120,425
(33,634)

15,202

34,427
(26,256)

$ 110,164
$ 135,857




Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

Rogue Valley Council of Governments (RVCOG) is an independent local
governmental entity formed under the authority of Oregon Revised Statutes
(ORS) Chapter 190 on September 30, 1968. Although RVCOG’s governing board
includes elected officials representing several of the local governmental units,
counties, cities, and special districts, located in Jackson and Josephine Counties,
none of these other governing bodies exert direct oversight over RVCOG. In
addition, RVCOG does not exert oversight authority over any other local
governmental entity. The decisions of the RVCOG Board are not binding on any
member entity. RVCOG is not a component unit of any other local governmental
entity, nor is any other governmental entity a component unit of RVCOG.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and
the statement of activities) report information on all of RVCOG’s activities. The
effect of interfund services provided and used is not eliminated in the process of
consolidating the funds for these statements.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
other revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement
presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, RVCOG considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash
is received by RVCOG.

RVCOG reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is RVCOG’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Special Revenue Fund accounts for all financial resources
associated with the functional programs carried out by RVCOG
with the exception of the administrative function which is
accounted for in the General Fund.

The Endowment Fund accounts for an invested donation to the
Food & Friends program.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement
presentation (continued)

Additionally, RVCOG reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for administrative services not
included in the General Fund, information systems operation,
computer acquisition and replacement, building operations, vehicle
operations, and leave liability services provided to other RVCOG
departments, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement
basis.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and
contracts and contributions, 3) capital grants and contributions, and 4) internally
dedicated resources.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
government’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is
RVCOG?’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as

they are needed.

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity

1. Deposits and investments

RVCOG?’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued)

An endowment fund to benefit RVCOG’s Food & Friends program was
established with a donation received in a prior fiscal year.

2. Receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due
to/from other funds.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset
by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate
that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available
financial resources.

All trade receivables are shown at actual amount with no allowance for un-
collectables included because all receivables are expected to be collected
eventually.

3. Prepaid items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial
statements.

4. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by RVCOG as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an
estimated useful life in excess of five years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Buildings and equipment of RVCOG are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued)

Assets Years
Buildings 35/40
Vehicles 5
Office Equipment 5
Computer Equipment 5

5. Compensated absences

It is RVCOG’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick pay benefits up to maximum limits. Upon separation,
employees are entitled to all accrued but unused vacation benefits and 20% of
unused sick leave benefits if separating in “good standing.” A Catastrophic Leave
Bank was established to provide additional sick leave benefits to eligible
employees who exhaust all other paid leave due to a qualifying illness or injury.
The Leave Bank is funded through donations of excess sick and/or vacation leave
from current employees as well as the 80% balance of sick leave remaining from
separating employees.

6. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and governmental and proprietary
fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

7. Fund equity

In the fund financial statements, Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions (GASB 54) defines the different types of fund balances that a
governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes. GASB 54 requires
the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the five fund
balance components listed below:

Non-spendable — This component includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (1) not in spendable form or (2) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity (continued)

Restricted — This component consists of amounts that can be spent only
for specific purposes stipulated by external resource providers,
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. RVCOG has no
restricted fund balance.

Committed — This component consists of amounts that can only be spent
for specific purposes determined by a formal action of RVCOG’s highest
level of decision-making authority, which includes resolutions. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless RVCOG
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action
(resolution) it employed previously to commit those amounts. The Food &
Friends Endowment Fund is considered committed.

Assigned — This component consists of amounts that are intended to be
used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria
to be classified as restricted or committed. The authority for assigning
fund balance is expressed by the Board of Directors, or its designee as
established in RVCOG’s Fund Balance Policy. RVCOG has no assigned
fund balance.

Unassigned — This residual classification of fund balance includes all
spendable amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is
RVCOG’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources
(committed, assigned, and unassigned) as they are needed. When unrestricted
resources are available for use it is RVCOG’s policy to use committed resources
first, then assigned, and then unassigned, as they are needed.

Note 2 - Reconciliation of gsovernment-wide and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance
sheet and the government-wide statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund
balance-total governmental funds and net position-governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” There are
currently no capital assets in the category.
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Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements(continued)

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance
sheet and the government-wide statement of net position (continued)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “internal service funds are
used by management to charge the costs of internal services, computer rent, leave
liability, and building operating costs to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in
the statement of net assets.” The details of this $3,014,144 difference are as
follows:

Unrestricted net position of internal service funds $ 385913
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

and related debt $ 26287231
Net adjustment to decrease fund balance - total

governmental funds to arrive at net position -
governmental activities $ 3,014,144

Note 3 - Stewardship, compliance, and accountability

A. Budgetary information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles for all governmental funds. All annual appropriations lapse
at fiscal year end.

In the spring of each year the Executive Director submits a proposed budget to the
budget committee. This committee comprises three members of the Board of
Directors and an equal number of concerned citizens who are familiar with
RVCOG’s programs. The budget committee reviews the budget as submitted and
holds a public meeting for the purpose of discussing the budget with the various
department directors and to receive citizen comments. After making any changes
that the members deem necessary, the budget committee approves the budget and
recommends it to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors adopts the
budget and sets appropriations by resolution prior to July 1.
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Note 3 - Stewardship. compliance, and accountability (continued)

A. Budgetary information (continued)

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund with the exception of the Special
Revenue Fund, which is prepared by department. Only the Special Revenue Fund
is divided into programmatic departments; the General Fund includes only the
Organization’s central administrative functions. Department heads may make
transfers of appropriations within a department’s programs; all other changes to
the appropriations must be approved by the Board. The legal level of budgetary
control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations) is the
fund level for all funds except the Special Revenue Fund, which is at the
department level.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2025, expenditures did not exceed appropriations in
the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, or Food & Friends Endowment Fund.

C. Deficit fund equity

The Special Revenue Fund has had a deficit fund balance for most of its historical
(from the latter half of the 1990’s) existence. The beginning deficit fund balance
was $53,264 as of July 1, 2022; however, the revenues for several of the projects
within the fund exceeded expenditures by a net of $162,797 during the year then
ended. The historical deficit fund balance has now reached a positive balance of
$232,412.

Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds

A. Deposits and investments

RVCOG maintains cash and investments with Peoples Bank of Commerce,
Banner Bank, Evergreen Federal Savings, and SEI Private Trust Company.

At year end, RVCOG’s carrying amount of deposits in People’s Bank of
Commerce was $2,253,496 and Banner Bank was $265,095. The carrying amount
of deposits in Evergreen Federal Savings was $848. The carrying amount of
deposits in SEI Private Trust Company was $544,420. Of the bank balances,
$250,000 per institution is covered by federal depository insurance. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 40, Deposits
and Investment Risk Disclosures, requires government agencies to disclose an
indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year end. If bank deposits
at year end are not entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

A. Deposits and investment (continued)

RVCOG or by its agent in RVCOG’s name, the custodial credit risk that exists
must be disclosed.

Deposits with financial institutions are held in RVCOG’s name and comprise
bank demand deposits. During 2007, the legislature revised ORS 295 which
governs the collateralization of Oregon public funds. This revision created a
shared liability structure for bank depositories and streamlined the
collateralization process for local governments. The Office of the State Treasurer
monitors the banks collateral and issues a list of qualified bank depositories to
public officials to verify the banks they do business with comply with State
collateralization requirements. RVCOG’s financial institutions are on the
approved list.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. RVCOG does not have a formal
deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

The custodian, Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, is the agent of the depository
bank. The securities pledged are designated as subject to the Pledge Agreement
between the Depository Bank, Custodian Bank, and Office of the State Treasurer
(OST) and are held for the benefit of the OST on behalf of the public depositors.

As of June 30, 2025, and for the year then ended, RVCOG was in compliance
with the aforementioned State of Oregon statutes.

Credit Risk — State Statutes authorize RVCOG to invest primarily in general
obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations
of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances,
time certificates of deposit, certain commercial paper, and the Oregon State
Treasury LGIP, among others.

Concentration of Credit Risk — RVCOG is required to provide information about
the concentration of credit risk associated with its investments in one issuer that
represents 5 percent or more of the total investments, excluding investments in
external investment pools or those issued and explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
Government. RVCOG has no such investments.

Interest Rate Risk — RVCOG has no formal investment policy that explicitly
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value loss
arising from increasing interest rates.
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

A. Deposits and investment (continued)

RVCOG had $544,420 of investments as of June 30, 2025.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for RVCOG’s individual major funds and internal
service funds in the aggregate are as follows:

Special
Receivables: General Revenue Other Funds Total
Accounts Receivable $ 11,607 $ 1,407,006 $ 195923 $§ 1,614,536
Intergovernmental -
Net total receivables $ 11,607 $ 1,407,006 $ 195,923 $§ 1,614,536

RVCOG?’s accounts receivable are pledged as collateral for the line of credit. See
note 4.G on page 49.

Governmental funds reported $585,625 as deferred revenue in connection with
receivables for revenues that are considered to be available to liquidate liabilities

of the current period.

C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 556,750 ' § -3 - $ 556,750

Construction Work In Progress $ - $ -
Total capital assets, not being depreciated $ 556,750 ' $ - $ - $ 556,750
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Building $ 2,677,019 $ - 8 - $ 2,677,019

Equipment 460,811 26,512 - 487,323
Total capital assets, being depreciated $ 3,137,830 $ 26,512 $ - $ 3,164,342
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building $  (742,724) $ (72,935) $ - $ (815,659)

Equipment (229,712) (47,489) - (277,201)
Total accumulated depreciation $  (972436) $§  (120424) $ - $ (1,092,860)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net $ 2165394 § (93912) $ - $ 2,071,482

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 2,722,144 $ (93,912) $ - $ 2628232
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

C. Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital assets held by the government are charged to the various functions

based on their usage of the assets:

General government $ 21,376
Health and welfare 71,547
Natural resources and conservation 5,080
Planning 22,421
Total depreciation expense - governmental
activities $ 120,424

D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers

There were no interfund transfers made during the fiscal year ending June 30,2025.
E. Leases

RVCOG implemented GASB Statement No. 87 Leases for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022. The primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance
and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. This
statement establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle
that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.

On June 1, 2021, RVCOG entered into a 60-month lease as Lessee for the use of a
Pitney Bowes SendPro P Series postage machine. The lease terms require a
monthly payment of $286.34. There is no option to purchase the equipment at the
end of the lease term.

On April 1, 2022, RVCOG entered into a 36-month lease as Lessee for the use of
Auto-Chlor dishwashing machine serial number 11975. The lease terms require a
payment of $285.25 every four weeks. There is no option to purchase the
equipment at the end of the lease term.

On August 16, 2022, RVCOG entered into a 60-month lease as Lessee for the use
of Canon copier IRADVDXCS5870I. The lease terms require a monthly payment
of $531.96. At the end of the lease term, the equipment may be purchased for fair
market value; however, RVCOG does not plan to purchase the equipment.
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

E. Leases (continued)

On August 16, 2022, RVCOG entered into a 60-month lease as Lessee for the use
of Canon copier IRADVDX4845I. The lease terms require a monthly payment of
$180.16. At the end of the lease term, the equipment may be purchased for fair
market value; however, RVCOG does not plan to purchase the equipment.

As of June 30, 2025, outstanding lease balance totaled $22,228.

Original Balance as of Balance as of
Lease Activity Amount July 1, 2025 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2025
Canon Color Printer/Copier/Fax 28,916 21,249 - 6,384 14,365
Canon Printer/Copier 9,792 7,234 - 2,162 5,072
Pitney Bowes Postage Machine 17,180 5,727 - 3,436 2,291
Auto-Chlor Dishwashing Machine 10,764 3,070 - 3,070 -
Total Lease Activity 66,652 37,280 - 15,052 22,228
Governmental Activities
Total
Year ending June 30 Payments
2026 11,982
2027 8,546
2028 1,700
2029 -
Total minimum lease payments $ 22,228

Less amount representing interest -
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 22,228
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

F. Long-term Debt

Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Due in More
Beginning  Additions / Ending Current Due Within Than
Balance  (Reductions) Balance Portion One Year One Year
Governmental activities:
Deferred Revenues $ 394,198 191427 § 585625 $ - $ 585625 $
Compensated absences $ 380,228 34427 § 414655 § 82,931 $ - $ 331,724

Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 774426 § 225854 § 1000280 § 82931 § 585625 § 331,724

Deferred revenues exist when revenues are received in advance of service delivery.
At year-end, $585,625 in revenues were deferred to the following fiscal year to
cover expenses for project completion. Compensated absence liability is
accumulated in the internal service funds and predominantly serves the
governmental funds. The year-end compensated absences balance of $414,655 is
divided into $82,931 in current liabilities and $331,724 in long-term liabilities.

G. Current Debt

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements requires the disclosure of information related
to a government’s debt.

RVCOG maintains a line of credit of $250,000 to meet short-term cash flow
needs. This line of credit is liquidated as cash resources become available and is
not intended to fund long-term needs. RVCOG’s accounts receivable are pledged
as collateral for the line of credit. For the year ended June 30, 2025, the line of
credit was not utilized and the ending balance was $0.

RVCOG has no other debt.

H. Endowment Funds

RVCOG received a donation during a prior fiscal year that the donor requested be
used specifically for the Food & Friends program. The Board of Directors (the
Board) created a quasi-endowment fund with the donation and named it the Food
& Friends of the Rogue Valley Council of Governments Endowment Fund
(Endowment). By resolution, the Board determined that the purpose of the
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

H. Endowment Funds (continued)

Endowment is to support the operations of the Food & Friends Meals on Wheels
and Senior Meals Program of Jackson and Josephine Counties (Food & Friends).

Since this endowment is not restricted by the donor, it is listed on the Statement of
Financial Position as committed.

Investment Objectives

The primary long-term objective of the Endowment Fund is to achieve a real rate
of return in excess of the rate of inflation (net of all investment costs), as
measured by the Consumer Price Index, while ensuring that the assets are
invested with a level of care, skill, prudence, and diligence at least equal to that of
a prudent investor acting in like capacity under similar circumstances. To ensure
marketability and liquidity, equity investments shall be executed through
nationally recognized exchanges such as the New York Stock Exchange,
American Stock Exchange, and NASDAQ.

Investment Guidelines

The Endowment Fund assets may be invested in publicly traded common and
preferred stocks, exchange traded funds (ETF’s), convertible bonds and preferred
stocks, bank common funds, mutual funds, and fixed income securities (including
corporate bonds and money market instruments), whether interest-bearing or
discount instruments. No other securities are permissible investments without the
specific approval of the Board. As an asset allocation guideline, the investment
manager will respect the following investment ranges:

« U.S. Equity 20 —-70%
* International Equity 0-25%
* REITs and/or Real Estate Companies 0-10%
 Investment Grade Bonds & Money Market 20 —-70%
* Non-Investment Bonds 0-15%

+ Alternative investment strategies 0—-10%
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H. Endowment Funds (continued)

The changes in net assets of the Endowment Fund are as follows for the year
ended June 30, 2025:

Investment dividends $ 36,416
Realized and unrealized gains 47,956
Investment advisory fees (3,655)
Food & Friends distributions -
Current year change in fund balance 80,717
Fund balance - beginning 463,703
Fund balance - ending $ 544,420

1. Fair Value Measurements

RVCOG follows the requirements of the GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application. Accordingly, investments in debt and equity
securities with readily determinable values are required to be presented in the
financial statements at their fair value (current market value) on June 30, 2025.

GASB Statement No. 72 describes three levels of measurement inputs that may be
used to determine fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active financial markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not
active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

A table of fair values determined, and methods used as of June 30, 2025, follows:
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

1. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for  Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets  Observable Inputs Unobservable
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Cash and equivalents $ 35,564 $ 35,564 $ - $ -
Domestic fixed income 189,097 189,097
Domestic equity securities 139,650 139,650
International fixed income 37,533 37,533
International equity securities 92,812 92,812
Alternative investments 49,764 49,764
Emerging market equities - -
$ 544420 $ 544,420 $ - $ -

J. Correction of Beginning Balances

RVCOG has determined that some beginning balances from FY 2024 were not
accurately stated in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance. Accordingly, an adjustment to the General and Special
Revenue Funds beginning fund balance was made on page 28.

Corrections to Beginning Balances:

Special Revenue  Proprietary

General Fund Fund Funds Total
Beginning fund balance $ 774318 $ 213,297  $ 463,703 § 1,451,318
The distribution of internal direct charges $ 173) $ (173)
had an entry error which affected the
beginning balance in the General Fund
Restricted revenue for service equity bonus $ (143,682) $ (143,682)

should have been deferred to fiscal year 2025

Beginning fund balance, as restated $ 774,145 $ 69,615 § 463,703 § 1,307,463




Note 5 - Other information

A. Risk management

RVCOG is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and workers’
compensation for which RVCOG carries commercial insurance.

There were no claim settlements that exceeded insurance coverage during the fiscal
year.

B. Contingent liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the State of Oregon. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time, although RVCOG expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial.

C. Emplovee retirement systems and pension plans

Plan Descriptions. Rogue Valley Council of Governments provides two retirement
plans for employees, one plan for employer contributions and one plan for employee
contributions.
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C. Emplovee retirement systems and pension plans (continued)

Employer contributions are made under a special type of retirement plan commonly
referred to as a profit-sharing plan. This profit-sharing plan allows eligible
employees to receive employer contributions without having to include such
amounts in income. The employer contribution amount is 13.02% of eligible
earnings. The profit-sharing plan is a defined contribution plan, which is intended to
qualify under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a defined
contribution plan, it is not covered under Title IV of ERISA, and, therefore, benefits
are not insured by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation.

Employee contributions are made under a special type of retirement plan commonly
referred to as a 457 plan. A 457 plan allows employee contributions to be made
through salary deferrals as a percent of eligible earnings or a flat dollar amount. The
plan allows both pre-tax and after-tax (ROTH) contributions. The plan is intended to
qualify under Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The plan is a single employer plan administered by Empower Retirement. Stand-
alone financial reports are issued to each individual plan participant.

Funding policy. Both plans are fully funded by transfers directly to employees’
accounts at Empower Retirement through banking transfers processed with each

payroll.

Annual pension cost. RVCOG’s current year contributions were calculated based on
eligible payroll of $2,156,528 resulting in an employer contribution of $280,780.

D. Post-employment and termination benefits

Post-employment benefits. RVCOG implemented GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. RVCOG provides the
opportunity for retirees to remain on the health and dental insurance plans through a
COBRA arrangement until they reach age 65. RVCOG does not currently have any
retirees taking advantage of this opportunity.

Termination benefits. RVCOG provides no benefits to terminated employees.
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E. Other Reporting Issues

Newly Implemented Accounting Standards

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, RVCOG implemented the following
accounting standard(s):

GASB Statement No. 100 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 62" This Statement’s primary objective is to
enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes
and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent,
and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. This
statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 102 “Certain Risk Disclosures” This Statements primary
objective is to provide users of government financial statements with the essential
information about risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain
concentrations or constraints. This statement is effective with fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2024

New Accounting Pronouncements Upcoming

RVCOG will implement new GASB pronouncements in the fiscal year no later than the
required effective date. Management has not yet determined the effect on the financial
statements from implementing any of the following pronouncements:

GASB Statement No. 102 “Certain Risk Disclosures” This Statements primary
objective is to provide users of government financial statements with the essential
information about risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain
concentrations or constraints. This statement is effective with fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2024.

GASB Statement No. 103 “Financial Reporting Model Improvements” This
Statement’s primary objective is to improve key components of the financial
reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is
essential for decision making and assessing a government’s accountability. It also
addresses certain application issues. This statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2025.
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health and welfare
Senior and disability services

Senior nutrition program
Total health and welfare

Natural resources and conservation
Natural resources

Planning
Community development
Transportation planning
Land use planning
Total planning

Total expenditures
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Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
4,091,260 4,091,260 $ 2,474,444 $ 1,616,816
3,282,132 3,282,132 3,104,931 177,201
7,373,392 7,373,392 § 5,579,375 § 1,794,017
801,583 801,583 § 647,647 $ 153,936
801,583 801,583 § 647,647 $ 153,936
169,638 189,638 $ 202,207 $ (12,569)

1,782,371 1,792,371 905,010 887,361
330,254 330,254 215,853 114,401
2,282,263 2,312,263 ' § 1,323,070 $ 989,193
10,457,238 10,487,238 $§ 7,550,092 $§ 2,937,146




Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2025

Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
government and to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Computer Rental Fund - This fund is used to account for the rental of computers
to other departments and related costs.

Internal Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation and
allocation of costs associated with certain administrative functions including:
finance, personnel, photocopy, mail room, etc.

Building Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Fund - This fund is used to
account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with building
operations.

Vehicle Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Fund - This fund is used to account
for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with vehicle fleet
operations.

Leave Liability Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources to pay for leave used by employees and to allocate the associated costs
to the appropriate projects at the time the leave is accrued.
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ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Prepaids

Due from other funds
Total current assets

Long-term assets:
Capital assets

Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)
Total long-term assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other current

liabilities
Uncompensated absences-current
portion
Due to other funds
Other Current Liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Uncompensated absences-non-

current portion

Other Non-Current Liabilities
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets (net of
related debt)
Unrestricted
Total net position

Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Combining Schedule of Net Position
All Proprietary Fund Types

June 30, 2025
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Building Vehicle Leave
Computer  Internal Service oO&M oO&M Liability

Rental Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$§ 25895 § 257,318 § 294,259 § 102,193 § 59,703 739,368
173,015 22,909 195,924
10,006 11,345 4,426 25,777
§ 25895 3 440,339 $§ 328,513 § 106,619 $ 59,703 961,069
$ 40,148 40,148
3,233,769 3,233,769
17,923 - 407,202 425,125
(17,923) (831,275)  (221,613) (1,070,811)
$ - $2,442,642 $ 185,589 2,628,231
$ - 3 - $2442,642 $ 185,589 § - 2,628,231
§ 25895 3 440,339 $2,771,155 § 292,208 $ 59,703 3,589,300
$ 1,037 $ 77,108 $ 3,601 § 2,601 $ - 84,347
54,855 54,855
67,840 8,314 76,154
$ 1,037 § 144,948 § 3,601 $ 10915 $ 54,855 215,356
$ 359,800 359,800
$ - -
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 - §$ 359,800 359,800
$ 1,037 $ 144,948 § 3,601 § 10,915 $ 414,655 575,156
$ - 8 - $2,442,642 § 185,589 $ - 2,628,231
24,858 295,391 324,912 95,704  (354,952) 385,913
§ 24858 § 295,391 §2,767,554 $ 281,293 $(354,952) 3,014,144




Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Charges for services
Leave liability accrual charges
Other revenues
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of services
Leave liability costs
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income(loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Donations

Sale of assets

Interest expense

Income(loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contibutions from government:
Contributed capital assets

Transfers In

Change in net position

Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

All Proprietary Fund Types
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
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Computer  Internal Service Building Vehicle Leave Liability
Rental Fund Fund O&MFund O & M Fund Fund Totals
§ 33,169 $ 962,924 $ 131,354 § 58,098 $ -3 1,185,545
629,288 629,288
- 676 14,310 14,986
$ 33,169 $ 963,600 $ 145,664 $ 58,098 § 629,288 $ 1,829,819
$ 25989 $ 874,305 § 152,774 $ 39,716 $ - $ 1,092,784
614,570 614,570
- 73,667 59,680 133,347
$§ 25989 8§ 874,305 § 226,441 § 99,396 $ 614,570 $ 1,840,701
$ 7,180 $ 89,295 § (80,777) $ (41,298) $ 14,718 $ (10,882)
$ - $ - $ - $ 36,575 $ - $ 36,575
$ 7,180 $ 89,295 $ (80,777) $ (4,723) $ 14,718 § 25,693
$ -8 -8 - 3 - 3 - 3 -
$ 7,180 $ 89,295 $ (80,777) $ (4,723) $ 14,718 § 25,693
17,678 206,096 2,848,331 286,016 (369,670) 2,988,451
§ 24858 § 295391 $ 2,767,554 $ 281,293 $  (354,952) § 3,014,144




Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows
All Proprietary Fund Types
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from interfund services provided
Receipts from outside services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITES
Interfund loans (short-term)
Transfers from other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITES
Proceeds (Loss) from sale of capital assets
Purchase of capital assets for general purposes
Principle paid on capital debt
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30

61

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) Decrease in prepaids

Increase (Decrease) in uncompensated absences

Increase (Decrease) in deferred revenues

Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Computer Internal Building Vehicle Leave

Rental Fund Service Fund O & M Fund O & M Fund Liability Fund Totals
$ 33,169 § 921,883 § 149,267 § 62,794 § 629,288 § 1,796,401
675 14,310 - 14,985
(27,145) (393,975) (196,181) (39,716) (657,017)
(504,647) (580,143) (1,084,790)
$ 6,024 $ 23936 $ (32,604) § 23,078 § 49,145 § 69,579
$ -
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 3 -
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 -8 - $ -
(6,241) (6.241)
$ -3 - 8 (6,241) $ - 8 - 8 (6,241)
$ 6,024 § 23936 $ (38,845) § 23,078 § 49,145 $ 63,338
19,871 233,382 333,104 79,115 10,558 676,031
$§ 25895 $§ 257318 $ 294259 § 102,193 § 59,703 § 739,368
$ 7,180 § 89,295 § (80,777) $ (4,723) § 14,718 § 25,693
$ - 8 -8 73,667 $ 46,758 $ -3 120,425
(53,777) 15,760 4,383 (33,634)
12,736 2,153 313 15,202
34,427 34,427
(1,156) (24,317) (783) - (26,256)
$  (1,156) §  (65358) § 90,797 § 51,454 § 34,427 § 110,164
$ 6,024 $ 23937 § 10,020 § 46,731 § 49,145 § 135,857
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds
Schedules by Source

June 30, 2025
Governmental funds capital assets:
Machinery and equipment $ 22,051
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 22,051

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:

General fund $ 22,051
Special revenue fund $ -
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 22,051

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to
governmental finds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported on
mternal service funds are excluded from the above amounts.
Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds
Schedules by Function and Activity

June 30, 2025
Machinery and
Function and Activity Equipment
General government:
Administration $ 22,051
Total general government $ 22,051
Health and welfare:
Senior nutrition program $ -
Total health and welfare $ -
Planning;
Data processing $ -
Total planning $ -
Natural resources and conservation:
Data processing $ -
Total natural resources and conservation $ -
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 22,051

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported on internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of mternal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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ISLER Medford

Certified Public Accountants
And Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Rogue Valley Council of Governments

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Rogue Valley Council of Governments, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Rogue Valley Council
of Governments’ basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December
19, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Rogue Valley
Council of Governments’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Rogue Valley Council of Governments’
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

339 ALDER CREEK DRIVE @ MEDFORD. OREGON 97504 @ PHONE
Member of Isler Association of Acoountin
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Isler Medford, LLC

Medford, Oregon
December 19, 2025

839 ALDER CREEK DRIVE ® MEDFORD, OREGON 97504 ® PHONE (541) 779-7641 ® FAX (541) 773-8001
Member of Isler Association of Accounting Firms
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ISLER Medford

LLC

Certified Public Accountants
And Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2025. Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ resuits section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Rogue Valley Council of Governments complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Rogue Valley Council of Governments and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the

838 ALDER CREEK DRIVE ® MEDFORD, OREGON 97504 ® PHONME (541) 779-7641 @ FAX (541) 773-8001
Member of Isler Association of Accounting Firms
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compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of
the report on compliance about Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Rogue Valley Council of Governments'
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Rogue Valley Council of Governments' internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Rogue Valley Council of Governments’ internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

M(‘Q{z&&md AL

Isler Medford, LLC
Medford, Oregon
December 19, 2025

839 ALDER CREEK DRIVE ® MEDFORD, OREGON 97504 ® PHONE (541) 779-7641 ® FAX (541) 773-8001
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

2024-2025
CFDA Federal or State Disbursements
Federal Agency/Program Title Number Contract Number Recognized
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Oregon Department of Human Services - Senior Services Division
Aging Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part B-Grants for Supportive Services 93.044 OR DHS 171791 $ 585,351
and Senior Centers
Nutrition Services Under Title III-C of the Older Americans Act 93.045 OR DHS 171791 6,187
Nutrition Services Under Title ITI-C of the Older Americans Act 93.045 OR DHS 171791 1,614,198
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 ORDHS 171791 46,248
Total Aging Cluster * $ 2,251,984
Support Services
Special Programs for the Aging Title VII, Chapter 3 Programs for Prevention of 93.041 ORDHS 171791 $ -
Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation
Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part D Disease Prevention and Health 93.043 OR DHS 171791 $ 20,725
Promotion Services
Special Programs for the Aging Title IV/II Discretionary Projects 93.048 90HDRC0007-01-00 33,015
National Family Caregiver Support, Title III, Part E 93.052 ORDHS 171791 239,321
Total Support Services $ 293,061
Medicaid Cluster
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 OR DHS 171791 $ 609,367
Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 3,154,412
U. S. Department of Transportation
Oregon Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction (Federal-Aid Highway Program)
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 ODOT 73000-00007925  $ 616,354
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 ODOT 73000-00007854 261,288
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 OR DOT 30595 1,985
Total U. S. Department of Transportation $ 879,627
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grants, Non-Entitlement 14.228 H20011 $ 26,133
Community Development Block Grants, D.R. PIER 14.272 $ 23,415
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 49,548
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
Cooperative Agreements (Discretionary Grants
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 $ 115
Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements 66.818 02J16801 $ 99,496
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality - Ambient Air Quality Monitoring  66.034 141-24 $ 182,822
Total U. S. Environmental Protection Agency $ 282,433

U. S. Department of Homeland Security

Hazard Mitigation Assistance Grants
FEMA Hazard Migigation Grant Program 97.039 $ 46,157



Rogue Valley Council of Governments
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
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2024-2025
CFDA Federal or State Disbursements
Federal Agency/Program Title Number Contract Number Recognized
U. S. Department of the Interior
U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Reclamation
WaterSMART (Sustain and Manage America's Resources for Tomorrow) 15.507 $ 69,443
U. S. Department of Interior Bureau of Land Management
Invasive and Noxious Plant Management 15.230 120AC00334 $ 42,084
Total U. S. Department of Interior $ 111,527
Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 4523704

* Major programas defined by the Uniform Guidance.

Notes:

(1) The 10% indirect de minimis cost rate was not used as the Organization is utilizing an approved Central Service Cost

Allocation Plan which includes an Indirect Cost Rate of 14%.

(2) The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations,
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the

preparation of, the basic financial statements.



ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2025

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes

s Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? Yes

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes

Any GAGAS audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 515(d)(2)
of the Uniform Guidance? Yes

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes

e Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance

with section 200.516 (a) of the Uniform Guidance? Yes
Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.778 Medicaid Cluster
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction
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No

None

Reported

No

No

No

None
Reported

No
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ROGUE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2025

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between type A and type B programs: $750.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X _Yes No

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Cost

None

Section IV — Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None
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Rogue Valley Council of Governments

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2025

AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS
SECTION



AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-050 through 162-10-320, incorporated in the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the
Secretary of State in cooperation with the Oregon State Board of Accountancy,
enumerate the financial statements, schedules, comments, and disclosures required in all
audit reports. The required statements and schedules are set forth in the preceding
sections of this report. Required comments and disclosures related to our examination of
such statements and schedules are set forth in the following pages.
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| ISLER Medford |

Certified Public Accountants
And Business Advisors

Independent Auditors’ Report Required by Oregon State Regulations

We have audited the basic financial statements of Rogue Valley Council of Governments as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2025. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Rogue Valley Council of Governments' financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in
Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon
Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

Deposits of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions, and repayment.

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

Programs funded from outside sources.

Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe Rogue Valley Council of
Governments was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Rogue Valley Council of Governments' internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Council's internal control over financial reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of council members, management, and the Oregon
Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

Jabr me//mz, LLC.
Isler Medford, LLC
December 19, 2025

839 ALDER CREEK DRIVE ® MEDFORD, OREGON 97504 ® PHONE (541) 779-7641 ® FAX (541) 773-8001
Member of Isler Association of Accounting Firms
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|._Internal Control
See Independent Auditors’ Report on internal control structure related matters noted in a
financial statement audit conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

1. Accounting Records
We found the accounting records of Rogue Valley Council of Governments to be

adequate for audit.

lil. Collateral
Based on the results of our tests, balances on deposit with financial institutions were
secured in accordance with the requirements of ORS 295.

IV. Indebtedness
Rogue Valley Council of Governments complied with legal or contractual provisions
relating to short-term and long-term debt.

V. Budget Compliance
We reviewed the preparation, adoption, and execution of the budget for the year ended

June 30, 2025 and the preparation and adoption of the budget for the year ending June 30, 2026. Rogue
Valley Council of Governments has complied with statutory requirement for the current and ensuing
year's budget.

Resolutions authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level by which expenditures
cannot legally exceed appropriations. The legal levei of budgetary control is the fund level for all funds
except the Special Revenue Fund, which is budgeted at the department level. Budgeted amounts are as
originally adopted or as amended by the Board of Directors. Expenditures did not exceed appropriations
for the year ended June 30, 2025.

VL. Insurance and Fidelity Bond Coverage
We examined Rogue Valley Councit of Governments' insurance policies and determined

that such policies appeared to be in force at June 30, 2025. We are not competent by training to
comment on the adequacy of the insurance policies covering Rogue Valley Council of Governments’
property at June 30, 2025.
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VII. Programs Funded from Outside Sources
See Independent Auditors’ Report on compliance based on an audit of basic financial
statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

IX. Investments

Based on our review of Rogue Valley Council of Governments' records, it appears Rogue
Valley Council of Governments was in compliance with the legal requirements of ORS Chapter 294
pertaining to the investment of public funds as of June 30, 2025, and for the year then ended.

X. Public Contracts and Purchasing
Rogue Valley Council of Governments' procedures for awarding public contracts were
reviewed and appear to comply with the legal requirements contained in ORS Chapter 279.
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